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COCHIN SMART MISSION LIMITED
Registered Office: 4™ Floor, JLN Stadium Metro Station, Kaloor, Ernakulam, Kochi, Kerala — 682017

CIN: U75140KL2016SGC040388 Website: www.csml.co.in E-mail: info@csml.co.in
Phone: 0484 2795700

NOTICE

Shorter notice is hereby given that the Eighth Annual General Meeting of Cochin Smart Mission Limited will be
held on Monday, 22" September 2025 at 3:00 p.m. IST through Video Conferencing / Other Audio-Visual
Means, at the deemed venue Cochin Smart Mission Limited, 4" Floor, JLN Stadium Metro Station, Kaloor,
Ernakulam, Kochi, Kerala — 682017, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year ended
31* March 2024 and the report of the Directors and Auditors thereon

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended 31
March 2024 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as circulated to the Members,
be and are hereby considered and adopted.”

2. To appoint Statutory Auditors
To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 142 and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, as amended from time to time, and in accordance
with Letter No. No. /CA. V/COY/KERALA, CSML(1)/1462 dated 21/09/2024 from the Office of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India, New Delhi, M/s S I N D & Associates (SR3046), 30/1860,
Ponnurunni — Chalikavattom Road, Vyttila, Kochi — 682019, Ernakulam, Kerala be and is hereby appointed
as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2024-25, to hold office from the conclusion of
this Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the Ninth Annual General Meeting, at a remuneration
of Rs.40000/- (Rupees Forty thousand only) plus out of pocket expenses and applicable taxes.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
3. To approve re-appointment of Dr. M. Ramachandran as Independent Director
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, and
the Rules made thereunder, read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013, and other applicable
provisions, including any statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof for the time being in force, the
re-appointment of Dr. M. Ramachandran (DIN:01573258), who was originally appointed as an Independent
Director of the Company by the Government of Kerala vide G.O. No. 2551/2019/LSGD dated November
12, 2019, and who, being eligible for re-appointment for a second term and was re-appointed by the
Government of Kerala vide G.O. No. 1995/2024/LSGD dated October 21, 2024, for a consecutive period
of five years or until the closure of the Smart Cities Mission Project, whichever is earlier, and whose office
shall not be liable to retirement by rotation, be and is hereby approved.

COCHIN SMART MISSION LIMITED
4t Floor, JLN Stadium Metro Station, Kaloor, Kochi, Ernakulam-682 017, Kerala| CIN : U75140KL20165SGC040388
www.csml.co.in @ 0484 2795700 & info@csml.co.in
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to do
all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

4, To approve re-appointment of Shri. P. Joy Oommen as Independent Director
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, and
the Rules made thereunder, read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013, and other applicable
provisions, including any statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof for the time being in force, the
re-appointment of Shri. P. Joy Oommen (DIN : 01525898), who was originally appointed as an
Independent Director of the Company by the Government of Kerala vide G.O. No. 2551/2019/LSGD
dated November 12, 2019, and who, being eligible for re-appointment for a second term and was re-
appointed by the Government of Kerala vide G.O. No. 1995/2024/LSGD dated October 21, 2024, for a
consecutive period of five years or until the closure of the Smart Cities Mission Project, whichever is
earlier, and whose office shall not be liable to retirement by rotation, be and is hereby approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to
do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

By order of the Board
Regd. Office Digitally signed by Anu J
4" Floor, JLN Stadium Metro Station, Kaloor Anu J  ommeioes
Ernakulam — 682 017 AnulJ
Company Secretary
Date : 15" September 2025 Mem No. A56122
NOTES:

1. Pursuant to directions issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India (the ‘MCA”) vide its General
Circular No.14/2020 dated April 08, 2020 and General Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 read with General
Circular No. 33/2020 dated September 28, 2021, General Circular No. 39/2020 dated December 31, 2020, General
Circular No. 10/2021 dated June 23, 2021, General Circular No. 20/2021 dated December 08, 2021, General Circular
No.3/2022 dated May 05, 2022, General Circular No0.09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 and General Circular
No0.09/2024 dated September 19, 2024(collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars’), physical presence of the
Members at the EGM/AGM venue is not required and the general meeting may be held through video conferencing
or other audio visual means (‘VC/OAVM’). Accordingly, the Eighth AGM of CSML is being held through
VC/OAVM in compliance with the MCA Circulars. The registered office of the Company shall be the deemed venue
of the meeting.

2. Since the AGM is scheduled to be held through VC/OAVM, the route map, proxy form and attendance slip are not
attached to this Notice.

3. In accordance with MCA circulars, the Annual Report (including the Board’s report, Auditor’s report or other
documents required to be attached therewith) shall be sent only by email to the members and to all other persons so
entitled.

4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of
ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

5. The members can participate in the Eighth Annual General Meeting by clicking the e-link forwarded via separate
email.

COCHIN SMART MISSION LIMITED
4t Floor, JLN Stadium Metro Station, Kaloor, Kochi, Ernakulam-682 017, Kerala| CIN : U75140KL2016SGC040388
www.csml.co.in @ 0484 2795700 & info@csml.co.in
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6. Generally, a member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on
his/ her behalf and the proxy need not be a member of the company. Since the AGM is being held through
VC/OAVM, the facility for appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for this AGM. However,
in pursuance of Sections 112 & 113, the representatives of the Governor of State and body corporates may be
appointed for the purpose of participation and voting in the meeting held through VC/OAVM.

7. The members may conduct business set forth in this notice through voting by show of hands, in accordance with
MCA Circulars.

8. The designated email address is cs@csml.co.in
9. Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at https://csml.co.in/

10. The registers mandated under Companies Act, 2013 and other documents referred in this notice and explanatory
statement shall be available for electronic inspection. Members seeking to inspect such documents may write to
cs@csml.co.in

11. If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM, please write to cs@csml.co.in or contact Smt. Anu J,
Company Secretary Ph:8089130904

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
(Pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

The following Statement sets out all material facts relating to the business mentioned under Item Nos. 3 and 4 in the
Notice.

Item No. 3:
To approve re-appointment of Dr. M. Ramachandran as Independent Director

Dr. M. Ramachandran(DIN:01573258) was appointed as an Independent Director on the Board of Cochin Smart Mission
Limited by Government of Kerala vide G.O. No. 2551/2019/LSGD dated November 12, 2019. Dr. M. Ramachandran is
also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company.

The Government of Kerala, vide G.O.(Rt) No.1995/2024/LSGD dated 21-10-2024 has re-appointed Dr. M.
Ramachandran as Independent Director for a consecutive period of five years or until the closure of the Smart Cities
Mission Project, whichever is earlier. The date of initial appointment of Dr. M. Ramachandran as Independent Director
as per records of Ministry of Corporate Affairs is 16™ December 2019 and accordingly, the consecutive term of Dr. M.
Ramachandran as Independent Director shall commence from 16™ December 2024. He shall be paid remuneration by
way of fee for attending the meetings of the Board or Committees thereof or for any other purpose as may be decided by
the Board, reimbursement of expenses for participating in the Board and other meetings and profit related commission
within the limits stipulated under Section 197 of the Act.

Dr. M. Ramachandran is a former Indian Administrative Service officer, the former Secretary, Ministry of Urban
Development, Government of India, and the former Chief Secretary of Uttarakhand. Dr. M. Ramachandran holds
extensive expertise and comprehensive understanding of urban development and governance. In view of these, the re-
appointment of Dr. M. Ramachandran as an Independent Director is in the interest of the Company.

The Company has received from Dr. M. Ramachandran a declaration to the effect that he meets the criteria of
independence as provided in Section 149 of the Act and an intimation to the effect that he is not disqualified from being
appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

In accordance with the provisions of Articles of Association of the Company and other applicable provisions of
Companies Act, 2013, re-appointment of Independent Directors for a second term requires approval of Members by way
of a Special Resolution. Accordingly, the approval of members is sought for re-appointment of Dr. M. Ramachandran as
an Independent Director for second term commencing from 16" December 2024.

Dr. M. Ramachandran and his relatives are interested in the resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice. Save and except
the above, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

The Board commends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval by the Members.

COCHIN SMART MISSION LIMITED
4th Floor, JLN Stadium Metro Station, Kaloor, Kochi, Ernakulam-682 017, Kerala| CIN : U75140KL20165SGC040388
www.csml.co.in @ 0484 2795700 & info@csml.co.in
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Item No. 4:
To approve re-appointment of Shri. P. Joy Oommen as Independent Director

Shri. P. Joy Oommen (DIN : 01525898) was appointed as an Independent Director on the Board of Cochin Smart Mission
Limited by Government of Kerala vide G.O. No. 2551/2019/LSGD dated November 12, 2019. Shri. P. Joy Oommen is
the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company.

The Government of Kerala, vide G.O.(Rt) N0.1995/2024/LSGD dated 21-10-2024 has re-appointed Shri. P. Joy Oommen
as Independent Director for a consecutive period of five years or until the closure of the Smart Cities Mission Project,
whichever is earlier. The date of initial appointment of Shri. P. Joy Oommen as Independent Director as per records of
Ministry of Corporate Affairs is 16™ December 2019 and accordingly, the consecutive term of Shri. P. Joy Oommen as
Independent Director shall commence from 16" December 2024. He shall be paid remuneration by way of fee for
attending the meetings of the Board or Committees thereof or for any other purpose as may be decided by the Board,
reimbursement of expenses for participating in the Board and other meetings and profit related commission within the
limits stipulated under Section 197 of the Act.

Shri. P. Joy Oommen is a former Indian Administrative Service officer, the former Chief Secretary of Chattisgarh and the
former Chairman of Naya Raipur Development Authority. Shri. P. Joy Oommen holds extensive expertise and
comprehensive understanding of urban development and governance. In view of these, the re-appointment of Shri. P. Joy
Oommen as an Independent Director is in the interest of the Company.

The Company has received from Shri. P. Joy Oommen, a declaration to the effect that he meets the criteria of
independence as provided in Section 149 of the Act and an intimation to the effect that he is not disqualified from being
appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

In accordance with the provisions of Articles of Association of the Company and other applicable provisions of
Companies Act, 2013, re-appointment of Independent Directors for a second term requires approval of Members by way
of a Special Resolution. Accordingly, the approval of members is sought for re-appointment of Shri. P. Joy Oommen as
an Independent Director for second term commencing from 16" December 2024.

Shri. P. Joy Oommen and his relatives are interested in the resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice. Save and except
the above, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

The Board commends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice for approval by the Members.

COCHIN SMART MISSION LIMITED
4th Floor, JLN Stadium Metro Station, Kaloor, Kochi, Ernakulam-682 017, Kerala| CIN : U75140KL20165SGC040388
www.csml.co.in @ 0484 2795700 & info@csml.co.in
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To

The Members

Cochin Smart Mission Limited
Ernakulam

Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 8% Annual Report of your Company along with the Audited Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024.

1. Financial Summary and highlights

The key highlights of the financial performance of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 as
compared to the previous financial year is as follows:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

FINANCIAL RESULTS 2023 -2024 2022 -2023

Total Income 15,001.27 11106.38
Less : Expenses N 15,439.52 11664.69
Profit / (Loss) before Tax (438.25) (558.31)
Less : Tax Expenses ' 0.00 0.00
(438.25) ~ (55831)

Amount, if any, which the Board proposes to carry to any reserves
In the absence of profits, no amount is proposed to be carried into reserves.

Dividend
No dividend has been recommended by the Board during the year under review.

State of Company's Affairs.

The Smart Cities Mission was initiated in 2015 by the Government of India through the Ministry of Housing
and Urban Affairs (MoHUA), aimed at transforming urban areas across the nation into smart cities that
prioritize the well-being of citizens and promote sustainability through urban renewal, retrofitting and
application of smart solutions. Kochi city was one of the 20 pioneering cities selected in the initial round of
the All India City Challenge competition, successfully securing funding for various development initiatives.
Cochin Smart Mission Limited, a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV), was incorporated on 16% March 2016 with
an initial authorised share capital of Rs.1 Crore, which was subsequently increased to Rs.200 Crores.

Government of India has extended the Smart Cities Mission term applicable to the Company till March 31,
2025. There was no acquisition, merger, expansion, modernization, diversification, development /acquisition
/ assignment of material intellectual property rights, change in the status of the company or change in the
financial year, during the year under review.

The company operates in the segment of social infrastructure development. Apart from the smart cities
mission term applicable to the company, no other material event has an impact on the affairs of the company.

Change in the nature of business

The nature of the Company’s business remained unchanged during fiscal year 2023-24. The company has not
commenced any new business or discontinued, sold or disposed any of its existing businesses or hived off any
segment or division during the year.

Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company, having
occurred since the end of the Year and till the date of the Report

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company have occurred since
the end of the year under review till the date of this report. Government of India has extended the Smart
Cities Mission term applicable to the Company till March 31, 2025. The financial impact of this development
cannot be estimated at this stage.
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f) Details of revision of financial statements or the Report
The Company has not revised its financial statements or Boards’ Report either voluntarily or pursuant to the
order of any judicial authority in any of the three preceding financial years.

Project highlights

a) Cancer Speciality Block at Ernakulam General Hospital
The 45,000 sq.ft. six-storied cancer block was constructed at a cost of ¥25 crores. It is equipped with 105 beds,
general ICU and neutropenia ICU, along with chemotherapy unit. The block also houses separate wards for men
and women, dormitory facility for bystanders, nursing stations, doctors’ rooms, and various other essential
amenities for patient care. The Cancer Speciality Block, a milestone in public healthcare infrastructure, when
combined with professional staff and cutting-edge technology can provide life-saving treatment and level of
care comparable to that offered by private institutions, particularly to the underprivileged.

Truck mounted Road Sweeping Machines

Two truck-mounted road sweeping machines were supplied to the Kochi Municipal Corporation, including 5
years of operation and maintenance (0&M), at a cost of ¥10.98 crores. Equipped with rotating brushes and a
powerful vacuum system, each machine is equipped to collect dust and debris from road surfaces, covering up
to 8 km per hour. Additionally, the trucks are GPS-enabled and feature a pair of CCTVs for monitoring and
operational control.

Capital and Debt Structure

The authorized, issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital of the company remained unchanged
throughout the year at Rs.200 Crores. There was no reclassification or sub-division of the authorised share capital,
reduction of share capital, buy back of shares, change in the capital structure resulting from restructuring or change
in voting rights.

During the year the company has not issued any shares, warrants or other convertible securities or any employee
stock option schemes.

Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)
The company was not required to make any transfers to IEPF during the year under review.

Management
a) Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
As on 31st March 2024, the Board comprised of Eleven Directors including Eight Directors nominated by
Government of Kerala, Two Independent Directors and One Director nominated by the Kochi Municipal
Corporation.
Name Designation DIN
Dr. V. Venu IAS Chairman & Nominee Director 01105099
Adv. Anil Kumar Mulakkiyil Nominee Director 09107237
Dr. M. Ramachandran IAS (Rtd.) Independent Director 01573258
Shri. P. Joy Oommen IAS (Rtd.) Independent Director 01525898
Shri. Keshvendra Kumar IAS Nominee Director 05257040
Dr. Sharmila Mary Joseph IAS Nominee Director 07974964
Smt. Bhandari Swagat Ranveerchand IAS* Nominee Director 09462568
Shri. Shaji V Nair IAS Chief Executive Officer & | 10280940
Nominee Director
9 | Shri. Umesh N. S. K. IAS Nominee Director 10265700
10 | Shri. M. G. Rajamanickam IAS* Nominee Director 06847977
11 | Smt. Chelsasini V IAS Nominee Director 10459279
*Ceased directorship after the conclusion of FY 2023-24

QDN W

The Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as on 315t March 2024 are as follows:
Name Designation DIN
1 | Shri. Shaji V Nair IAS CEOQ & Nominee Director 10280940
2 | Smt. Anu] Company Secretary N.A.

(i) Changes in Directors & Key Managerial Personnel during financial year 2023-24
a) Shri. Suhas S. IAS was given additional charge of CEO in place of Shri. Shanavas S. IAS vide G.O. dated
23rd April 2023.
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Shri. Umesh N. S. K. IAS was included as a Director in the place of Dr. Renu Raj 1AS vide G.0. dated 4t
May 2023.

c) Shri. Keshvendra Kumar [AS was appointed as Director in place of Shri. Sanjay M. Kaul IAS vide G.O.
dated 29t May 2023

d) Shri. Shaji V. Nair IAS was appointed as CEO of the Company and nominated as Director in place of Shri.
Shanavas S. IAS vide G.0. dated 315t May 2023

e) Shri. M. G. Rajamanickam IAS was appointed as Director in place of Shri. Arun K. Vijayan IAS vide G.0.
dated 8% June 2023

f) Ms. Bhandari Swagat Ranveerchand IAS was appointed as Director in place of Shri.Venkatesapathy S.
[IAS vide G.0. dated 12t July 2023

g) Dr. V. Venu IAS was appointed as Chairman and Director in place of Dr. V. P. Joy IAS (Retd.) vide G.O.
dated 315t July 2023

h) Smt Chelsasini V. IAS was appointed as Nominee Director in place of Shri. M. Babu Abdul Khadeer IRPS
vide G.0. dated 26% December 2023.

Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel from the end of the financial year 2023-24 to
the date of this report

a) Shri. Seeram Sambasiva Rao IAS appointed as Nominee Director in place of Shri. M. G. Rajamanickam
IAS vide G.0. dated 27t June 2024.

b) Shri. Premkumar V. R. IAS was included as Nominee Director in the place of Smt. Bhandari Swagat
Ranveerchand IAS vide G.0. dated 27t June 2024.

¢) Dr.M. Ramachandran IAS (Rtd.) was re-appointed as Independent Director for a consecutive period of
5 years as per Section 149 of Companies Act, 2013 or till the closure of Smart Cities Mission project,
whichever is earlier, vide G.0. dated 215t October 2024.

d) Shri. P. Joy Oommen IAS (Rtd.) was re-appointed as Independent Director for a consecutive period of
5 years as per Section 149 of Companies Act, 2013 or till the closure of Smart Cities Mission project,
whichever is earlier, vide G.0. dated 21st October 2024.

e) Smt Sarada Muraleedharan IAS was nominated as Chairman & Director in place of Dr. V. Venu IAS
(Rtd.) vide G.O. dated 22 Qctober 2024.

f) Shri. Jeevan Babu K. IAS was nominated as Director in place of Shri. Premkumar V. R. IAS vide G.O.
dated 22 October 2024.

b) The rationale for re-appointment of Independent Director(s) after completion of the first term.

The Independent Directors of the company, Dr. M. Ramachandran IAS(Rtd.) and Shri. P Joy Oommen IAS (Rtd.)
have been re-appointed by Government of Kerala vide G.0. dated 215t October 2024. In the opinion of the Board,
Dr. M. Ramachandran IAS(Rtd.) and Shri. P Joy Oommen IAS (Rtd.) possess the integrity, expertise and
experience required to act as Independent Directors of the Company. Your Directors also places the re-
appointment of Dr. M. Ramachandran IAS(Rtd.) and Shri. P Joy Oommen IAS (Rtd.) for the approval of members
atthe 8% AGM.

Declaration by Independent Directors
Necessary declarations with respect to independence has been received from all Independent Directors of the
company. The Independent Directors have complied with the Code for Independent Directors prescribed in
Schedule IV of the Act.

Board Meetings
During the FY 2023-24, 3 (Three) Board meetings were held on 23 June 2023, 7th August 2023 and 19t
December 2023 respectively.

Committees
(i) Composition of Committees constituted by the Board under Companies Act, 2013
a) Audit Committee

Name of Direcor [ cCategory AR S A A
Dr. Mundayat Ramachandran IAS (Retd.) Chairman - Independent Director

Shri. Parampath Joy Oommen IAS (Retd.) Member - Independent Director

Shri. M. Babu Abdul Khadeer IRPS* Member-Non-Executive Non-Independent Director—_|

*Ceased directorship vide G.0. dated 26-12-2023.
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During the FY 2023-24, 5 (Five) meetings of Audit Committee were held 22 June 2023, 24 November
2023, 18t December 2023, 15t February 2024 and 2314 March 2024 respectively.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

'Name of Directors JlaiAle S ki) () 7| [Category o WEms Al Bh 0

Shri. Parampath Joy Oommen IAS (Retd.) Chairman - Independent Director

Dr. Mundayat Ramachandran IAS (Retd.) Member - Independent Director

Shri. Shaji V Nair IAS Member-Non-Executive Non-Independent Director
During the FY 2023-24, 1 (One) meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee was held on 24t
November 2023.

(ii) Recommendations of Audit Committee
During the year under review there has been no instance where the recommendations of the Audit
Committee have not been accepted by the Board.

Policy of Directors’ appointment and remuneration
All directors of the company are nominated by the appropriate Government and Kochi Municipal Corporation.
The terms of Director’s appointment are decided by the nominating authority.

Annual Evaluation

As stipulated by Clause VII of Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013, the Independent Directors have assessed
the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the company management and the Board
and its members. The proceedings of the said meeting have been communicated to the senior management of
the Company. Performance evaluations of nominee Directors are undertaken by the nominating Organization
/ Government.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement
Your Directors state that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2024, the applicable
accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule Il to the Act, have been
followed and there are no material departures from the same;

the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and of the profit and loss of the Company for
the year ended on that date;

the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a 'going concern’ basis;

the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

Internal Financial Controls

The Company has put in place adequate internal financial controls and they are reviewed by the internal
auditors and the Audit Committee. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material
weakness in the design or operation was observed.

Frauds reported by the Auditors
No frauds have been reported by the Statutory Auditor or the Secretarial Auditor to the Audit Committee, Board
or to the Central Government.

Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures
The company does not have and have not had any subsidiary, associates or joint ventures.

Deposits
The company has not accepted deposits and does #6E kayg 2y deposits remaining unpaid or unclaimed as at the
end of the year.
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8. Particulars of Loan, Guarantees and Investments
The company has not given any loan, made any investments or given any guarantees during the year.

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with Related Parties
The transactions with Related Parties as per Ind AS 24 are set out in the Notes forming part of Financial Statements.
The disclosure in form AOC-2 is included as Annexure A.

. Corporate Social Responsibility
The provisions related to Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable to the Company.

- Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo

(a) Conservation of energy-
(i) the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy : NIL
(i) the steps taken by the company for utilising alternate sources of energy: NIL
(iii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipment: NIL

(b) Technology Absorption
During the year the company did not actively adopt or integrate any new technology.

(c) Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo
There were no foreign exchange earnings or expenditures during the year under review.

. Risk Management
The company has adopted a Risk Management Policy duly sanctioned by its Board of Directors. It has also
implemented a system for assessment and control of business risks, aimed at fostering stable and sustainable
business model.

The company has identified potential risks encompassing financial, legal, statutory, and internal process areas.
Moreover, it has implemented suitable measures to mitigate these risks effectively. With the exception of the Smart
Cities Mission term applicable to the Company, no other factors have been identified that could potentially impact

the Company's ongoing existence.

. Vigil Mechanism
The provision for establishment of vigil mechanism is not applicable to the company.

. Material Judicial orders
No material order has been passed by any Regulator, Court, Tribunal, Statutory and quasi-judicial body, impacting
the going concern status of the company.

. Auditors and Auditors’ Report

Statutory Audit

M/s S I N D & Associates, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors for financial year 2023-24. was re-
appointed by Comptroller & Auditor General of India, New Delhi as the Statutory Auditor of the Company for the
financial year 2024-25 also. Your directors propose their re-appointment at the upcoming 8t Annual General
Meeting.

The Independent Auditor’s Report shall form part of Annual Report. The Board's reply, if any, to any qualifications,
reservations, or adverse remarks of Independent Auditor, is included as Annexure B.

Secretarial Audit

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board had appointed M/s. Mehta & Mehta, Company
Secretaries in Practice, to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2023-24.

The Secretarial Audit Report shall be annexed to the Report. The Board’s reply to any qualifications, reservations,
or adverse remarks of Secretarial Auditor is included as Annexure B.

CSML Annual Report 2023-24 Page No.13



Comments of C&RAG
The Comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India under section 143(6)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013
shall form part of Annual Report.

. Compliance with Secretarial Standards
The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards, with the exception of observations outlined
in the Secretarial Audit Report. The said observations are also reproduced in Annexure B to this report.

. Particulars of Employees and related disclosures
Personnel and industrial relations were cordial and satisfactory during the year under review. There were no
employees of the company who have drawn remuneration in excess of the limits set out under Section 197(12) of
the Act read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014.

. Disclosure as per Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013
The Company has adopted Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy and has complied with the provision relating to the
constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition, and Redressal) Act, 2013. The company has notreceived any complaints during year under review and
there are no outstanding complaints in this regard as of 315t March 2024.

19. Annual Return
Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Return for FY 2022-23 is available at

https://csml.co.in/

20. Designated person
Pursuant to Rule9(4) of Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, Company Secretary has been
designated for furnishing information to the Registrar or any authorized officer.

. General

Your Directors confirm that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there was no
transaction on these items or the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 were not applicable to the Company during
the year under review:

a) Maintenance of Cost records and Cost Audit

b) Non-compliant deposits under Chapter V of the Act.

c) Defaultin repayment of deposits or payment of interest thereon

d) Provision of money to purchase its own shares

e) Application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

f) Loan settlement or valuation with Banks or Financial Institutions

. Acknowledgements
Your Directors wish to extend their heartfelt gratitude for the invaluable support and cooperation extended by the
Central and State Governments, Banks and various Agencies throughout the past year. Additionally, your Directors
wish to acknowledge the dedicated service rendered by all employees of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Shaji V Nair IAS Umesh NS KIAS
Date :28-12-2024 CEO & Director Director
Place :Ernakulam DIN :10280940 DIN: 10265700
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Annexure A
FORM No. AOC-2

[Pursuant to clause (h) of Sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred
to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm'’s length transactions under third
proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: NIL

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any

Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions

Date of approval by the Board

Amount paid as advances, if any

Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to section
188

el il Ak e

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis: NIL

a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions
Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions
Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:
Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any :
Amount paid as advances, if any

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Shaji V Nair IAS Umesh N S KIAS
CEO & Director Director
DIN:10280940 DIN: 10265700
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Annexure B

Reply to the Observations / Remarks / Disclaimers by Auditors

Observations / Remarks / Disclaimers by

Reply / Explanation / Comments by Board

Secretarial Auditor

The Company was unable to adhere to the timelines provided by Section
96 of the Companies Act, 2013 for conducting its Annual General
Meeting for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

The 7% AGM was convened on extended due date of 30% December |
2023, butwas adjourned to a later date to consider the audited financial
statements for year ended 31% March 2023 along with outstanding |
comments from C&AG. Following the issuance of draft comments by |
C&AG, the Statutory Auditors revised their audit report on 14 March |
2024, The revised statutory audit report was reviewed and noted by
17 Audit Committee meeting held on 23" March 2024. CRAG issued
their final (nil) comments on 2™ April 2024. The code of conduct on Lok |
Sabha elections came into effect on 16t March 2024. After the elections,
the 315t Board Meeting held on 30t April 2024 reviewed and approved
the revised Statutory Audit Report. The audited financial statements for
year ended 31t March 2023 and reports thereon, along with comments
of C&AG were approved at adjourned 7t AGM concluded on 9% May i
2024,

As mandated under Section 173(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, every
company shall hold a minimum number of four meetings of its Board of
Directors every year in such a manner that not more than one hundred
and twenty days shall intervene between two consecutive meetings of
the Board. However, we have observed a gap of more than 120 days
between 29 and 30t Meeting of Board of Directors.

The gap between 29 & 30 Board Meetings held on 7 August 2023 &
19% December 2023 respectively was 133 days as against the permitted
interval of 120 days. The 30% Board Meeting was planned to consider
the draft financial statements for year ended 31 March 2023. The draft
financial statements were approved by the 14% Audit Committee
meeting held on 24t November 2023, but holding 30% Board Meeting
was delayed to accommodate ‘Nava Kerala Sadas’, an outreach initiative
by the Kerala state government, which took place from 18% November
2023 to 23 December 2023.

Pursuant to Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, every public
company having paid-up share capital of Rs.10 Crore or more shall have
a whole-time Key Managerial Personnel, which includes the whole time
Chief Financial Officer. However, the vacancy of Chief Financial Officer
is yet to be filled by the Company.

Two attempts were made in 2023 to fill the casual vacancy of CFO, but
candidates were reluctant to accept the offer due to smart cities mission |
deadline.

Comptroller & Auditor General of India

A. Comments on Profitability

Statement of Profit & Loss

Income - Other income (Note 3.10]) - Interest from Bank: Rs.771.80
lakh

This includes Rs.729.54 lakhs being interest earned from fixed deposits,
which were created using funds received from Government of
India(Gol) and Government of Kerala(GoK) and earmarked for
operation and maintenance of projects / CITIIS. Repeated instructions
issued by Gol state that interest earned from funds released should
mandatorily be remitted to the respective consolidated funds on pro-
rata basis. Further, vide circular dated 21 October 2021, Government of
Kerala reiterated that interest accrued under centrally sponsored
schemes (CSS) needs to be deposited in the respective consoclidated
funds on pro-rata basis. Thus, accounting of interest earned on funds
violates the clease directions issued by respective Governments and has
resulted in overstatement of other income and understatement of loss
for the year by Rs.729.54 lakhs.

Based on clause 10.4 of Smart City guidelines, out of total contribution |
received by the Company, Rs.200 Crores had been utilized for the issue
of shares to Government of Kerala and Kochi Municipal Corporation. As
per the accounting policy adopted by the company, all the cost
attributable to the Smart city projects are met initially from the grant
(i.e., amount received as central and state share less amount converted |
as share capital) and the potion of contribution retained as grant has |
been accounted as per Ind AS 20(Government Grants). The interest on |
funds parked out of share capital is subject to Income Tax. Based on the |
above, company has accounted interest on funds parked in deposits as |
interest income and showed in the profit and loss of the Company. The §
interest earned on deposits have been deposited to the respective |
consolidated funds during the year 2024-25

Interest on Mobilisation advance paid - Rs.76.32 lakh

The above head does not include Rs.27.75 lakh being interest accrued
on mobilisation advance paid to the contractors for the period upto 31
March 2024. This has resulted in understatement of other income and
overstatement of loss for the year to the extent of Rs.27.75 lakh.

As per the policies followed by the company in the previous years, |
interest on mobilization advance is calculated and accounted for when |
the bills are raised by the contractors. The interest on mobilization |
advance relates to a broken period and the current year’s interest will
be offset when the policy is carried over from the previous year, and
therefore, does not represent an additional income for the Company.

B. Comments on cash flow statement

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year - Rs.26,024.57 lakh
As per para 45 of the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 on
statement of cash flows, “an entity shall disclose the components of cash
and cash equivalents and shall present a reconciliation of the amounts
in its statement of cash flows with the equivalent items reported in the
balancesheet shows Rs.11,769.22 lakh. The company has not complied
with AS 7 regarding reconciliation of amount in equivalent terms and
the presentation of the cash flow statement is defective to that extent.

The difference in cash and cash equivalents mentioned in the comment |
is due to the classification of fixed deposits with maturity of more than
3 months from the end of the reporting period as investrnents, in |
accordance with the company’s accounting policy. As per Ind AS 7, these |
deposits are not considered as cash and cash equivalents, but rather as |
investments, Therefore, the difference of cash outflow of Rs.14,255.35 |
lakhs (fixed deposits in banks) in investing activities shall not be |
considered defective and is in line with the applicable accounting
standards.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

v. M. Anilkumar
Director
DIN:09107237

Shaji V. Nair IAS
CEOQ & Director
DIN :10280940
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of M/s COCHIN SMART MISSION LIMITED
Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the Financial Statements of M/s COCHIN SMART MISSION LIMITED
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year
then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
(“Ind AS”) other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at 31st March 2024, its Loss, the changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

.

Kochi Bangalore

30/1860, ] Site No.4C-1012, 1st Floor, 1st Block
Ponnurunni Roap‘, HRBR Extension, Banaswadi

Kochi, Kerala, Pin - 682019 Karnataka, Pin - 560043

Tel: +91 484 2972652 Tel: +91 9900104369
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Other Matters

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has utilized
1,202.53 lakhs over and above the Administrative & Other Expenses (A&OE) grant
received. The company is of the opinion that since no revenue is generated from the
main operations (except other income) of the company, the Administrative & Other
Expenses were met from the government grants.

As per the Smart City Guidelines, June 2015 issued by the Ministry of Urban
Development — Government of India, the smart City Mission will be operated as a
centrally sponsored scheme (CSS) and the Central Government proposes to give
financial support over 5 years on an average Rs.100 crores per city per year. An equal
amount on a matching basis, will have to be contributed by State/ULB.

The company has received contribution of Rs.208.25 crores from Central Government
and State Government. The company has received a grant of 122.50 crores from Central
Government and 85.75 crores from Government of Kerala during the financial year 2023-
24.

The company has received Rs.6.04 crores from Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs —
GOl towards implementation of E-Health Project under CITIIS programme during the
Financial Year 2023-24.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors and the Management is responsible for the
preparation of the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company's Annual Report, but does not include the Financial Statements
and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Based on the work we have performed; we
conclude that there is no material misstatement of this other information. So, we have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the applicable accounting standards and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of

Y
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adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significgnt
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we concl
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that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

« We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

 We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

o Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the Financial Statements may be influenced.
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factor in (i) planning the scope
of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work: and (ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statements.

e From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
Financial Statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the financial statements comply with the applicable Accounting
Standards specified in section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of Companigs
(Accounts) Rules 2014. i\/
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On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on 31st March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure C”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements wherever applicable;

Dispute between CSML and LC Infra Quavac-Case no.WPC No0.37825 of
2022, for the project "Construction of Vacuum Sewer Network with House
Connections and Sewerage Treatment Plant in West Kochi (ward 1-5) under
Smart Cities Mission in Kochi” . Due to public protest the project was
cancelled, and the Contractor claim loss of profit and the matter is before
Arbitrator appointed by Honourable High Court of Kerala. However the
company has not made any provision for the probable outflow of resources
that may be required to settle the obligation that may arises the amount could
not be reliably estimated according to the company nor recognised as a
contingent liability in the financial statement as per the accounting policy
adopted by it.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

ii. The company does not have any amounts required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund.

iv. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

v. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have
been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recordeg
in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend OQL;/
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invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

vi. Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause
(i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any material mis-statement.

vii. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

viii. Based on our examination which included test checks and information given
to us, the Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books
of account, which did not have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
respective softwares, hence we are unable to comment on audit trail feature
of the said software.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

3. Based on Verification of books of accounts of the Company and according to
information and explanations given to us, we give in the “Annexure B” a report on
the Directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India in terms of
Section 143(5) of the Act.

Place: Kochi-19
Date : 28/12/2024

UDIN:24212630BKASRZ4617
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Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditors' Report:

In terms of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 2020 (‘the Order'), issued by the Central
Government, in terms of section 143(11) of The Companies Act, 2013, we further report,
on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the said Order, as under: -

1. In respect of Property Plant Equipment and Intangible Assets:

a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Property Plant, and Equipment

b) The company has maintained proper records of Intangible assets.

c) The company has physically verified fixed assets during the year based on a regular
and phased program of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to
the size of the company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

d)The title/lease deeds of immovable proper (other than properties where the company is
the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the company)
disclosed in the financial statements that are held in the name of the company.

e) The company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant & Equipment (including Right
to Use assets) and intangible assets during the year. Hence the clause regarding
revaluation of assets is not applicable to the Company.

f) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and the
rules made thereunder;

2. In respect of its inventories:

a) The Company does not have any inventory, therefore the provisions of clause 3(ii) of
the order are not applicable to the company.

3. In respect of loans given, investments, guarantees and security:

The company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security, or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, LLPs, or any other parties during the year and hence the provisions of
Clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

4, Section 185 and 186 of the Act :

The company has not made investment except for Bank Fixed Deposits, granted any
loan, provided any guarantee or security to parties covered under Section 185 and 186
of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

b
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5. In respect of deposits accepted:

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits from public within the meaning of the directions issued by the Reserve Bank of
India, provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act, any other relevant provisions of the act
and the relevant rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

6. Cost Records:

The company does not fall under the Rules prescribed by the Central Government under
section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and we are of the opinion this clause of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

7. Statutory Dues:

According to the information and explanations given to us in respect of the statutory
dues:

i. Undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, income tax, and other
statutory dues have been regularly deposited by the company with the appropriate
authorities during the year; As informed to us, Employee’s State Insurance and
Employee’s Provident Fund are not applicable to the Company.

ii. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of the aforesaid dues were outstanding as on the last day of the
financial year for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

8. Undisclosed Income:

According to the information and explanations furnished by the management and based
on the audit procedures carried out during the course of audit, we have not come across
any transactions not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961.

9. Default in repayment of loans:

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not availed any loans or other borrowings from any lender.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us the on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or any government authority. Q}/
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¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations furnished to us, the
company has not availed any term loans during the year for the purposes for which they
were obtained.

d) According to the information and explanations furnished to us, the audit procedures
performed by us and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-
term purposes by the company.

e) According to the information and explanations furnished to us and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that the company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of
its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

f) According to the information and explanations furnished to us and the audit procedures
performed by us, we report that the company has not raised any loans during the year on
the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

10. In respect of Capital raising:

a) The company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(x)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

11. Frauds:

a) Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true
and fair view of the financial statements and as per the information and
explanation furnished to us by the management, no fraud on or by the company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

b) As there was no fraud on or by the company that have been noticed during the
year, the question of reporting to Central Government through Form ADT-4 does
not arise.

c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower
complaints received by the company during the year.

12. Nidhi Company:

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause
3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

13. Related Party Transaction:

Being a private company, the provisions of Section 177 are applicable to the company.
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance
with section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been
disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting

standards. L
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14. Internal Audit:

In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an internal audit
system commensurate with the size and nature of its business. We have been
provided and considered, the internal audit reports issued during the year under
audit, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

15. Non Cash Transaction:

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
furnished by the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, the provisions
of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

16. Registered u/s 45IA of RBI Act, 1934:

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations furnished to
us, the company is not required to be registered under section 45lA of the
Reserve Bank of India, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xvi)(a) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations furnished to
us, the company has not conducted any Non-Banking Finance or Housing
Finance Activity and hence the provisions of Clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

c)in our opinion and according to the information and explanations furnished to
us, the Company is not a Core Investment Company and accordingly the
provisions of Clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations furnished to
us, the group do not have any Core Investment Company and accordingly the
provisions of Clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

17. Cash Losses:

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company had incurred cash
losses amounting to Rs. 41.21 lakhs during the financial year covered by our audit
and Rs 157.66 lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year.

18. Auditor Resignation:

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
the provisions of clause 3(xviii) are not applicable to the Company.

19. Capacity to meet Liabilities:

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, KL;:
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knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our

attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of the balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
Balance Sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
the liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

20. Corporate Social Responsibility:

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is
no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) specified in
Schedule VIl to the Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section
135 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable
for the year.

b) There are no ongoing projects under CSR where amount remaining unspent under
sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies act, is required to be transferred to
special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the
said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for
the year.

21. Consolidated Financial Statements:

As this audit report covers Standalone Financial Statement, the provisions of Clause
3(xxi) dealing with qualifications and adverse remarks by respective auditors of
companies included in the Consolidated Financial Statement is not applicable.

Place: Kochi-19 f S 1IN ,SOC| ._: S
Date : 28/12/2024 rtered Accountants

UDIN:24212630BKASRZ4617
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Annexure B referred to in the Independent Auditors' Report:

(Referred to in last Paragraph under (Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’

section of our report even date)

Whether the Company has system in
place to process all the accounting
transactions through IT system? If yes,
the implication of processing of
accounting transaction outside IT
System on the integrity of the integrity
of the accounts along with the financial
implications, if any, may be stated.

Yes, the Company has system in
place to process all the accounting
transactions through IT system.
Process like approvals, are done
through manual and IT systems.

Whether there is any restructuring of
an existing loan or cases of
waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest
etc. made by a lender to the Company
due to the Company’s inability to repay
the loan? If yes, the financial impact
may be stated.

No loans were borrowed by the
company until 315t march 2024.

Whether funds (Grant/ subsidy etc.)
received/ receivable for specific
schemes from Central/ State agencies
were properly accounted for/ utilized as
per its term and conditions? List the
cases of deviation.

Based on the audit procedures
carried out and as per the information
and explanations given to us, the
funds (Grant/ Subsidy) received/
receivable/ for specific schemes from
Central/ State agencies were properly
accounted for/ utilized as per its term
and conditions except for the
instances mentioned in Annexure |.
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Annexure | referred to in the Independent Auditors' Report:

(Referred to in Point 3 of Annexure B to the Independent Audit Report issued on the directions
directed issud by the Comptroller and Audit General of India in terms of sub-section (5) of section

143 of the Act)

Utilization of Government Grants during the year 2023-24

In Crores

Particulars Utilized Unutilized

Project Cost 137.31 7.71
Administrative and other

Expenses 5.39 -
Grant received from

MoHUA, GOI 122.50 -
CITIIS Grant 6.04 -

The company has received Rs 122.50 crores from Government of India and Rs 85.75
crores from Government of Kerala are received during the year 2023-24.
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Annexure C referred to in the Independent Auditors' Report:

(Referred to in Paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Cochin Smart
Mission Limited (“‘the Company”) as of March 31,2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAl'). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, those issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

\
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our audit, in our
opinion, the Company has generally maintained, in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financials
controls over financial reporting were generally effectively as of March 31,2024, based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

fo
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COCHIN SMART MISSION LIMITED
4TH FLOOR, JLN STADIUM METRO STATION, KALOOR
ERNAKULAM,KOCHI, KERALA, INDIA - 682017
CIN: U75140KL2016SGC040388

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2024

¥ in Lakhs
Particulars ':::a 312:mm“|: ;n‘z‘s 3155::1‘::; ;ogs
|I. ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 311 373.33 455.52
{b) Capital work-in-progress
(c) Other Intangible assets 3.1.2 467.46 710.41
(d) Intangible assets under development 3.1.3 9.02 9.02
() Right of Use Assets 3.1.4 382.38 449.32
(f) Financial Assets
(i) Investments
(i) Trade Receivables
(iii) Loans
(iv) Others
(g) Long-term loans and advances
(h) Other non-current assets
1,232.18 1,624.27
{2) Current Assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 3.2 14,255.35 -
(ii} Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 3.3 11,769.22 19,043.13
(iii) Loans
(iv) Other Financial Assets 34 303.99 299.04
(c) Other current assets 3.5 7,089.23 8,157.69
33,417.79 27,499.86
Total 34,649.98 29,124.13
i, EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholder's Funds
(a) Equity Share capital 3.6 20,000.00 20,000.00
(b) Other Equity 3.7 (9,617.14) {9,178.89)
10,382.86 10,821.11
{2) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(i) Other Financial Liabilities
(b) Provisions
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net)
(d) Government Grants 38 17,975.28 10,695.86
(e) Other Non-current Liabilities
17,975.28 10,695.86
{3) Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(i) Trade Payable 3.91
(a)Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 384.30 115.87
(b)Total outstanding dues of credilors other than micro and small enterprises 712.63 1,115.58
(ii} Other Financial Liabilities 3.9.2 1,179.70 1,285.16
(b) Other current liabilities 3.9.3 4,015.21 5,090.55
6,291.84 7,607.16
Total 34,649.98 29,124.13
Corporate Information 1
Significant accounting policies 2
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements :
In terms of our report attached. Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For SIN D & Associates Chartered

Accountants (FRN: 00121725)
©

v Shaji VNai UmeshNSKIAS  AnuJ

i i Chief Executive Officer & Director ~ Director Company Secretary
DIN: 10 : Mem No, AS61

UDIN: 24212630BKASRZ4617 10280340 RER e b A2

Place:Emakulam Place: Emakulam
Date :28-12-2024 Date : 28-12-2024




COCHIN SMART MISSION LIMITED
4TH FLOOR, JLN STADIUM METRO STATION, KALOOR
ERNAKULAM, KOCHI, KERALA, INDIA - 682017
CIN: U75140KL2016SGC040388

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024

¥ in Lakhs
Note For the year For the year
Particulars No ended 31st March ended 31st March
' 2024 2023
Income
I Revenue from operations - -
Il - Other income 3.10 15,001.27 11,106.38
lll Total Revenue ( I+l ) 15,001.27 11,106.38
IV Expenses
Employee benefits expense 3.11 115.94 110.85
Project Expenses 3.12 14,503.37 10,383.62
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortization expense 3.1 397.04 398.18
Impairment Loss 31 - 247
Other expenses 3.13 423.18 769.57
Prior period adjustments (Net)
Total Expenses 15,439.52 11,664.69
V Profit/(Loss) before tax ((lll-1V) (438.25) (558.31)
VI Tax expense / (benefit)
Current tax
Deferred Tax
Net tax expense / (benefit) - -
Vil Profit/(Loss) for the year (V-VI) (438.25) (558.31)
VIl Other Comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
Items that will be reclassified to profit and loss
IX Total Comprehensive Income for the period
(profit/loss + other comprehensive income) ¢=a) R
X Eaming per equity share(of Rs.10/- each):
(a) Basic (0.22) (0.28)
(b) Diluted (0.22) (0.28)
Significant accounting policies 2
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 3
In terms of our report attached. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For SIN D & Associates Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 00121725)
o
Shamim C lbra Shaji V Nair IAS Umesh N S K IAS AnuJ 7
Partner Chief Executive Officer & Director Director Company Secretary
Mem No. 213630 DIN : 10280940 DIN: 10265700 Mem No. A56122
UDIN : 24212630BKASRZ4617
Place : Ernakulam Place : Ernakulam
Date :28-12-2024 Date : 28-12-2024
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COCHIN SMART MISSION LIMITED
4TH FLOOR, JLN STADIUM METRO STATION, KALOOR
ERNAKULAM,KOCHI, KERALA, INDIA - 682017
CIN: U75140KL2016SGC040388

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024

Z in Lakhs
Particula For the year ended For the year ended
= 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
A. Cash Flow from Operating activities
Net Profit/(Loss) before tax (438.25) {558.31)
Adjustment for
Depreciation and amortization expenses 397.04 398.18
Impairment Loss - 247
Interest Income (771.80) (279.81)
Grant apportioned towards income (14,149.58) (10,788.16)
Other non cash Income/Expenses
Operating Profit/(Loss) before working capital changes (14,962.59) {11,225.63)
Adjustments for
(Increase) /Decrease in Other non-current assets
(Increase) /Decrease in Other current assets 1,026.02 7.427.50
Increase /(Decrease) in Other Financial liabilities (105.47) 259.20
Increase /(Decrease) in Other current liabilities (1,075.34) (61.03)
Increase /(Decrease) in Trade Payable {134.52) 738.97
Net Cash flow from / ( used in ) Operating activities ( A ) (15,251.90) {2,860.99)
B. Cash Flow from Investing activities
Property, Plant and Equipments (4.70) (2.73)
Intangible Asset (0.27) -
Right of Use Asset
Interest received (Less: Interest Accrued) 809.30 73.57
Grant received rom Government of India 12250.00 9,800.00
Grant received rom Government of Kerala 8575.00 9,800.00
Grant received from Government of India CITIIS Grant for E-Health Solution 604.00 604.00
Net Cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B ) 22,233.34 20,274.84
C. Cash flow from Financing activities
Share capital - -
Net Cash flow from / (used in) financing activities ( C ) - -
Net Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 6,981.44 17,413.85
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 19,043.13 1,629.28
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 26,024.57 19,043.13
Comprising of i
Bank Balance 26024.57 19,043.13
Total 26024.57 19,043.13
In terms of our report attached. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors ]
For S| N D & Associates Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 00121725) .
«© .
Shamim C lbra Shaji ?’TANW s Umesh N S K IAS AnuJ &/
Partner Chief Executive Officer & Director Director Company Secretary

Mem No. 213630 DIN : 10280940 DIN : 10265700 Mem No. A56122
UDIN : 24212630BKASRZ4617

Place : Ernakulam Place : Ernakulam
Date : 28-12-2024 Date : 28-12-2024
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A. Equity share capital

COCHIN SMART MISSION LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Particulars Number of shares Amount
As at 31 March 2023 20,000 20,000
Changes in Equity share capital during the year
As at 31 March 2024 20,000 20,000

A. Equity share capital
1) Current reporting period

Balance at the beginning of the current reporting |Changes in Equity| Restated balance | Changes in equity| Balance at the
period Share Capital due | at the beginning share capital |end of the current
to prior period of the current | during the current| reporting period
errors reporting period year
20,000 - - - 20,000
(2) Previous reporting period
Balance at the beginning of the current reporting |Changes in Equity | Restated balance [ Changes in equity| Balance at the
period Share Capital due | at the beginning share capital |end of the current
to prior period of the current | during the current| reporting period
errors reporting period year
20,000 - - - 20,000
B. Other equity
Particulars Equity component Reserves and Surplus Other Total
of compound Securities Retained comprehensive
financial premium earnings income
instruments account
Balance as at 31 March 2023 - (9,178.87) (9,178.87)
Profit/ (Loss) for the year ended 31 March 2024 (438.25) (438.25)
Transfer to other comprehensive income (net of tax) 7
Balance as at 31 March 2024 - - (9,617.12) - (8,617.12)
Particulars Equity component Reserves and Surplus Other Total
of compound Securities Retained comprehensive
financial premium earnings income
instruments account
Balance as at 31 March 2022 - (8,620.56) (8,620.56)
Profit/ (Loss) for the year ended 31 March 2023 (558.31) (558.31)
Transfer to other comprehensive income (net of tax) s
/
Balance as at 31 March 2023 - - (9,178.87) A (9,178.87)

In terms of our report attached.
For SIN D & Associates Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 00121725)

D

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

{

o~ ”
(A

Umesh N S KIAS
Director
DIN : 10265700

Anud -
Company Secretary
Mem No. A56122

Shamim C lbrahim

Partner

Mem No. 213630

UDIN : 24212630BKASRZ4617

Shaji V Nair IAS
Chief Executive Officer & Director
DIN : 10280940

Place : Emakulam
Date :28-12-2024

Place : Emakulam
Date : 28-12-2024




NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD FROM 1°t April 2023 to
315t MARCH 2024

1. Corporate Information

Cochin Smart Mission Limited (‘CSML’ or ‘the company’) is a State Government
Company domiciled and incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
act’) The address of its registered office is 4th Floor, JLN Stadium Metro Station,
Kaloor, Ernakulam, Kochi Ernakulam KL 682017 IN.

CSML is the Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) owned by Government of Kerala and
Kochi Municipal Corporation as equal shareholders formed under Smart City Mission
of the Government of India for the implementation of smart city project in Kochi. The
core objective of CSML is to make Kochi a model city by application of ‘Smart
Solutions’ and by providing better quality of living to the citizens. The Smart City
Mission aims for a rejuvenation of the prevailing urban eco system through a
Comprehensive Development of Institutional, Physical, Social and Economic Sectors.

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1. Basis of Accounting and preparation of Financial Statements
The financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) to comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued
thereafter. The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the
historical cost convention.

2.2. Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Indian Accounting
Standards requires the management to make some estimates and assumptions that
reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and the
reported income and expenses during the year. Some of the estimations require
higher degrees of judgment to be applied than others. Management continuously
evaluates all of its estimates and judgments based on available information and its
experience and believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial
statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results may differ from these
estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates are
recognized in the periods in which the results are known or materialized.

Key source of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which
may cause a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, is in respect of useful lives of property, plant and
equipment, valuation of deferred tax asset/liabilities and provisions and contingent
liabilities.

2.2.1. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of
each reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation
expense in future periods.
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2.3.

2.4.

2.5,

2.2.2. Valuation of deferred tax assets
The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each
reporting period. The policy for the same has been explained under Note 2.9.

2.2.3. Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best
estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance sheet date. These are
reviewed at each Balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates. Contingent Liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements.
A contingent asset is neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised on accrual basis of accounting.
Other Income
I. Interest deposits is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the
outstanding amount and the rate applicable.
Il.  Other incomes are recognized on receipt basis.
lll. Iltems of expenditure incurred in the current financial year that are not directly
related to creation of a capital asset is charged off as revenue expenditure in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Government Grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the
entity will comply with the conditions related to them and that the grants will be
received.

Grants related to income are deferred and recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs
that they are intended to compensate. They are either offset against the related
expense or presented as separate income. The timing of such recognition in profit or
loss will depend on the fulfilment of any conditions or obligations attached to the
grant.

Grants related to assets are presented as deferred income in the balance sheet.
Profit or loss will be affected by deferred income being recognised as income
systematically over the useful life of the related asset. The unrecognized portion of
Government grant is shown as deferred income.

Property Plant and Equipment (Tangible/Intangible)

Property Plant and Equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment if any. The cost of Property Plant and Equipment
comprises its purchase price, including any import duties and other taxes net or
recoverable taxes and any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset
ready for its intended use and other incidental expenses and interest on borrowings
attributable to acquisition of qualifying Property Plant and Equipment up to the date
the asset is ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates. In
the case of assets put to use, where settlement of bills is yet to be effected,
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2.6.

Z7,

capitalization is done on provisional basis subject to necessary adjustments in the
year of final settlement.

Depreciation and Amortization

I.  Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided using Straight Line
Method (SLM) based on the useful lives of assets, prescribed under the
Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013.

Il.  An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially
recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain/loss arising on de-
recognition of the asset is included in the Statement of profit and loss when
the asset is de-recognized. Fully depreciated asset still in use are retained in
the Financial Statement. The estimated useful life of the assets are as follows;

Computers (servers & networks) Six Years
Computers (end user devices) Three Years
Electrical appliances, equipment’s and | Ten Years
installations

Furniture and Fixtures Ten Years
Office equipment (*) Five Years
Vehicle Eight Years
Intangible Assets Five Years

lll.  Residual value of 5% has been retained for all the Property Plant and
Equipment, which is in line with the provisions of the Schedule II.

IV.  Individual assets costing less than Rs. 5,000 are charged to expense at the
time of purchase itself

V. Intangible assets are amortized on a systematic basis over the best estimate
of its useful life.

VI.  The useful life of mobile phone, which is grouped under office equipment, is
estimated at three years (*).

VII.  Movable assets procured as part of projects under Smart City Mission are
treated as assets of the Company. These assets will be transferred to Kochi
Municipal corporation or to the relevant authority upon the completion of
Operation and Maintenance period under the contract agreement with the
Vendor or Contractor.

The useful live, residual value and method of depreciation of property, plant and

equipment and intangible assets are reviewed at each financial year and adjusted

prospectively, if appropriate.

Capital Work in Progress (CWIP)

Assets under construction as at balance sheet date are shown as Capital Work in
Progress (CWIP). Expenditure directly related to construction activity, resulting into
creation of an asset of the company has been capitalized. All direct expenditure
attributable to the various components of the project are accounted as CWIP under
respective heads, wherever assets belong to the company. Common expenses
which are directly related to the construction activities, but attributable to more than
one component of the works are grouped under CWIP as expenses during
construction, to be allocated to various assets on completion.
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2.8. Provisions, contingent Liabilities and Contingent Asset
A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of
past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are
determined based on the best estimate required to seftle the obligation at the
Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted
to reflect the current best estimates.

A contingent liability is recognized when a possible obligation that arises from past
events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of
one or more uncertain events beyond the control of the Company or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. Contingent liabilities are disclosed
in notes to accounts.

Contingent asset is not recognized in the financial statement.

2.9. Taxes onIncome
Current tax is the tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in
accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act,1961. Deferred tax is
recognized on timing differences between the taxable income and the accounting
income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more
subsequent periods.

Deferred tax assets in respect of unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of
losses are recognized, if there is virtual certainty that there will be sufficient future
taxable income available to realize such losses. Other deferred tax assets are
recognized if there is reasonable certainty that there will be sufficient future taxable
income to realize such assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance
Sheet date for their reliability.

2.10. Foreign Exchange transactions/translations
Iltems included in the financial statements of the entity are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“functional currency”). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees
(“INR™), which is the functional currency and presentation currency of the Company.

Foreign exchange transactions are recorded at the functional currency adopting the
exchange rate prevailing on the dates of respective transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies existing as on the Balance Sheet
date are translated at the functional currency exchange rate prevailing as at the
Balance Sheet date. The exchange difference arising from the settlement of
transactions during the period and effect of translations of assets and liabilities at the
Balance Sheet date are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.




2.11. Company as a lessee

Company recognizes a lease liability reflecting future lease payments and a ‘right-of-
use asset’ for all lease contracts. In the statement of profit and loss company will
present interest expense on the lease liability and depreciation on the right-of-use
asset. In the cash flow statement, cash payments for the principal portion of the lease
liability and its related interest are classified within financing activities. Payments for
short-term leases, leases of low-value assets and variable lease payments are not
included in the measurement of the lease liability and are presented within operating
activities.

2.12. Segment reporting
The Company has only one reportable business segment, which is implementing the
Kochi Smart City Mission Projects. Accordingly, the amounts appearing in the
financial statements are related to the Company'’s single business segment.

2.13. Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash and Cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprises cash
at bank, Government treasury and short term deposits with banks.

2.14. Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit or loss is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of
past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing
and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available
information.

2.15. Current Assets, loans and advances
The current assets, loans and advances have values at which they are stated in the
balance sheet, if realized in the ordinary course of business. Current assets include
amount paid as work deposit for the execution of convergence projects by various
agencies.

2.16. Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or
financial liability. As company does not have financial asset and liabilities other than
trade assets/ Liabilities, all the financial assets and liabilities are measured at cost.

2.17. Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the
period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period.
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3.1 Tangible and Intangible Assets

3.1.1 Property, Plant and Equipment

3. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#in Lakhs

As at 31/03/2023 Gross carrying amount Depreciation Impairment za..” carrylng
mount
Balance as at Additions/ Disposal/l | Balance as at 31st | Bal as | Deprecati Disposall | Balance as | Balance as | Impairment | Disposall | Balance as As at As at
Particulars 1st April 2023 adjustments adjustments March 2024 at 1st April | forthe year | adjustments at 31st at 1st April | for the year | adjustments at 31st 31/03/2024 | 31/03/2023
during the year | during the 2023 during the | March 2024 2023 during the | March 2024
year year year
Computers
(servers & B4.31 0.00 0.00 84.31 31.89 13.25 0.00 45,14 0.3 0.00 0.31 38.86 52.11
networks)
Computers (End
User Devices) 41,76 3.38 0.00 4514 30.04 8.40 0.00 38.44 0.00 0.00 0,00 6.69 11.72
Electrical
appliances,
equipment's and B1.76 0.00 0.00 81.76 24,82 8.47 0.00 33.29 4.35 0.00 4.35 4412 52.59
installations
Eo i B 219.22 0.00 0.00 219.22 51.45 21.02 0.00 72,47 13.42 0.00 13.42| 13333  154.35
Office Equipments 272.07 1.32 0.00 273.39 87.17 3574 0.00 122.91 0.15 0.00 0.15 150,32 184.75
Vehicle 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total 699,12 4.70 0.00 703.82 225.37 86.88 0.00 312.25 18.23 0.00 0.00 18.23 373.33 455.52
|Previous Year 696.39 273 - 688.12 136.63 88.74 - 225.37 15.75 248 - 18.23 455.52 544.01
3.1.2 Other Intangible Assets
¥in Lakhs
As at 31/03/2023 Gross carrying amount Depreciation Impairment Net carrying
amount
Balance as at Additions/ Disposal/ | Balance as at 31st | Bal as | Deprecati Disposall | Bal as | Bal as | Impairment | Disposall | Balance as As at As at
Particulars 1st April 2023 adjustments adjustments March 2024 at 1st April | for the year | adjustments at 31st at1st April | for the year | adjustments at 31st 31/03/2024 | 31/03/2023
during the year | during the 2023 during the | March 2024 2023 during the | March 2024
5 year year year
omputer

Software 1,277.02 0.27 1,277.29 566.61 243.22 809.83 467.46 710.41
Total 1,277.02 0.27 - 1,277.29 566.61 243.22 - 809.83 467.46 710.41
Previous Year 1,277.02 1,277.02 324.12 242.49 - 566.61 710.41 962.90 |
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3.1.3 Intangible ts under develop t
€in Lakhs
As at 31/03/2023 Gross carrying amount Depreciation Impairment zﬂ..wwﬂﬂ_pzm
Balance as at Additions/ Disposall | Balance as at 31st | Balance as | Deprecation | Disposall | Balance as | Balance as | Impairment | Disposall | Balance as As at As at
\Particulars 1st April 2023 |  adjustments adjustments March 2024 at 1st April | for the year | adjustments at 31st at 1st April | for the year | adjustments at 3st 31/03/2024 | 31/03/2023
during the year | during the 2023 during the | March 2024 023 during the | March 2024
year year year
Intangible assets
under 9.02 9.02 - 9.02 8.02
development
Total 9,02 - - 9.02 - - - - 8.02 9.02
Previous Year 8.02 - - 9.02 - - - - 9.02 9.02
Note: Amount of contractual commitment for development of Intangible asset.
3.1.4 Right to use Assets
¥in Lakhs
As at 31/03/2023 Gross camrylng amount Depraciation Impairment 20“_.””«_.__.“_%@
Balance as at Additions. Disposall | Balance as at 31st | Balance as | Deprecation | Disposal/ | Balance as | Balance as | Impairment | Disposall | Balance as As at As at
Particulars 1st April 2023 djust t ij 1 March 2024 at 1st April | for the year | adjustments at 31st at1st April | for the year | adjustments at31st 31/03/2024 | 31/03/2023
during the year | during the 2023 during the | March 2024 2023 during the | March 2024
year year year
gL Vs < 669.40 669.40| 220,08 66.94 287.02 382.38) 44932
nce
Total 669.40 - - 669.40 220.08 66.94 - 287.02 - - - - 382.38 449,32
Pravious Year 669.40 - - 669.40 153.14 66.94 - 220.08 - - - - 449.32 516.26
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3.2. Investments

¥ in Lakhs

Particulars As at 31 st March 2024 As at 31 st March 2023
a) Fixed Deposits in Banks 14,255.35 -
14,255.35 "

% in Lakhs

3.3. Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars

As at 31 st March 2024

As at 31 st March 2023

a. Balances with banks

In current accounts 6,006.27 10,050.65
In deposit accounts 5,762.95 8,992.48
b. Cash on hand - -
c. Others
Sub Treasury Account - -
11,769.22 19,043.13
3.4. Other Financial Assets (current) Zin Lakhs
Particulars As at 31 st March 2024 As at 31 st March 2023
a) Interest Accrued 170.02 207.51
b) Balance with Kerala Government 10.42 10.42
c) Balance with State Mission Management Unit = #
¢} Income Tax (TDS) 84.77 4,25
d) Others 38.78 76.86
303.99 299.04
¥ in Lakhs

3.5. Other current assets

Particulars

As at 31 st March 2024

As at 31 st March 2023

a) Prepaid Expenses

b) Advance to Vendors 797.97 1,154.72

c) Security Deposits 0.17 0.17

d) Work Deposit 6,134.32 6,851.23

&) GST Credit 156.76 151.57
7,089.23 B,157.69

3.6. Equity Share Capital ¥ in Lakhs

Particulars

As at 31 st March 2024

As at 31 st March 2023

a) Authorised

20,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each
b} Issued, subscribed and fully paid up:
20,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each

20,000.00

20,000.00

20,000.00

20,000.00

3.6.1._Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31 st March 2023
No. of shares Amount in Rs. In lacs No. of shares Amount in Rs. In lacs
At the beginning of the year 20,00,00,000 20,000.00 20,00,00,000 20,000
Allotted during the year - - % =
Outstanding at the end of the year 20,00,00,000 20,000.00 20,00,00,000 20,000

3.6.2 The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each shareholder is entitled to receive dividends as declared

3.6.3 Number of equity shares in the Company held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares

Name of Shareholder

Equity Shares

Equity Shares

As at 31st March 2024

As at 31 st March 2023

No. of Shares held % of Holding No. of Shares held % of Holding
Governor of Kerala (Including shares held by i
nominee Share holders of GOK) 10,00,00,000 0.50 10,00,00,000 50%
Kochi Municipal Corporation 10,00,00,000 0.50 10,00,00,000 50%
Total 20,00,00,000 1.00 20,00,00,000 100%
3.7. Other Equity Zin Lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31 st March 2023
Surplus/(Deficit ) in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening Balance (9,178.89) (8,620.58)
Add: Profit / (Loss) for the year (438.25) (558.31)
Closing Balance (9,617.14) (9,178.89)
3.8. Government Grants 2 in Lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31 st March 2023
a) Grant received from Government of India 31,655.00 19,405.00
b) Grant received from Government of Kerala 28,375.00 19,800.00
¢) Contribution received from Kochi Municipal Corporation 1,197.53 1,197.53
d) Grant received from Government of India CITIIS Grant for E-Health Solution 1,359.00 755.00
€) Grant received from MoHUA, GOI - Street for People 50.00 50.00
) Grant apportioned towards income _ (ref. Note. 3.18) (44,661.25) (30,511.67)
Total 17,975.28 10,695.86 |
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3.9.1 Trade Payables

% in Lakhs

Particulars As at 31st March 2024 | As at 31 st March 2023
a)Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 384.30 115.87
b)Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 712.63 1,115.58
Total _1,096.93 1,231.45
Other Financial Liabilities Zin Lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 | As at 31 st March 2023
Interest earned on Grant Fund payable to Gowt. of India 50.55 257.13
Interest earned on Grant Fund payable to Govt. of Kerala 1,129.15 1,028.03
Total 1,179.70 1,285.16
.3 Other Current Liabilities ¥ in Lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31 st March 2023
a) Statutory payments 143.95 136.28
b) Earnest Money Deposit - -
b) Retention Payable 1,560.03 1,174.80
c) Accrued expenses - Project Management Consultancy - -
d) Accrued expenses - Project Expenses 2,212.37 3,703.59
e) Accrued expenses - Others 2.24 2.05
f) Audit Fee Payable 0.40 0.40
g) Others 96.22 73.43
Total 4,015.21 5,080.55
. Other income ¥ in Lakhs
. For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
Particulars M:n:h 2024 M:rch 2023
Other non operating income comprises of
i) Application / Tender Fees 3.48 7.50
ii) Interest from Bank 771.80 279.81
i) Interest on Income Tax Refund 0.02 0.01
iii) Interest on Mobilisation Advance paid 76.32 30.90
iv) Interest Received Others 0.07 -
v) Grant apportioned towards income 14,149.58 10,788.16
Total 15,001.27 11,106.38
. Employee benefits expense ¥ in Lakhs
For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
Fanichlars March 2024 March 2023
Salaries and wages 115.94 110.85
Total 115.94 110.85
3.12 Project Expenses % in Lakhs
For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
Particuinrs March 2024 March 2023
Cost of Project Activities 12,746.92 10,112.44
Operation and Maintenance Expenses of Project Assets 1,756.45 271.18
Total 14,503.37 10383.62
. Other expenses %in Lakhs
. For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
Particulars March 2024 March 2023
Audit Fees 0.47 0.40
Manpower Supply 73.75 52.75
Honorarium 0.05 0.05
Travelling abroad 16.22 3.19
Survey charges - 6.37
Travelling Expenses 13.07 7.84
Bank Charges 0.01 0.00
Vehicle Hire 21.46 12.29
Meeting Expenses 2,36 6.04
News Paper, Books and Periodicals 0.42 0.29
Office Expenses 1.04 1.09
Recruitment Expenses 0.34 2.18
Refreshment Expenses - 0.04
Postage and Courier 0.08 0.07
Printing and Office Stationery 2.04 1.83
Professional Charges 37.83 11.35
Rates & Taxes 2.50 1.54
Telephone Charges 0.84 0.87
Advertisement Expenses (Tender) 1.55 6.80
Web Site and Domain Charges 0.13 0.17
Document Management Software Service 7.28 B.81
Repairs & Maintenances 0.08 0.26
Safty Equipments - 0.09
Stipend paid 0.50 3.02
Events, Awards and Competitions 11.91 4B.89
Director’s Sitting Fee 4.50 5.25
Project Management Consultancy Fees 224 60 588.09
Internet and Email Charges 0.12 -
Total 423.18 769.57




3.14 In the opinion of the board, the current assets, loans and advances have values at
which they are stated in the balance sheet, if realized in the ordinary course of
business.

3.15 There is no capital work in Progress or Intangible assets under development for the

company as on 31st March 2024 except for the project related to setting up of
Integrated Command Control Centre. Assets capitalised under the project “Integrated
Command Control Centre” are under the control of CSML and there are areas where
company can generate revenue from this facility.
All other current projects of the company are mainly social projects or being executed
on the assets owned by Kochi Municipal Corporation or other Government agencies.
As company does not have revenue or effective control on these assets, company
has not recognized Capital Work in Progress in the financial statements and shall
charge the same costs to Profit and Loss Account.

3.16 Disclosure in respect of Ind AS 108 Segment reporting
The Company has only one reportable business segment, which is implementing the
Kochi Smart City Mission Projects. Accordingly, the amounts appearing in the
financial statements are related to the Company’s single business segment.

3.17 There are no doubtful debts outstanding as on 315t March 2024

3.18 Disclosure in respect of Ind AS20 (Government Grants)

Current Period (2023-24)

Zin Lakhs
Particulars Smart CITHIS Total
City
Opening Balance (1-4-2023) 9,711 984 10,695
Grants received/accounted during 20,825 604 21,429
the year
SPV share for CITTIS transferred - - -
Less: Released to Profit and Loss (14,878) (43) (14921)
Closing Balance (31-03-2024) 15,658 1,545 17,203
Previous Period (2022-23)
Zin Lakhs
Particulars Smart CITIIS Total
City
Opening Balance (1-4-2022) 871 409 1,280
Grants received during the year 19,600 604 20,204
SPV share for CITTIS transferred 2 = 2
Less: Released to Profit and Loss (10,760) (29) (10,789)
Closing Balance (31-03-2023) 9,711 984 10,695
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Government Grants have been received for the purpose of implementation of Smart
City Mission Projects in Kochi as per the Smart City Guidelines of Ministry of Urban
Development. Out of the total grant received by the company, Rs 19,995 Lakhs has
been utilised for the issue of Shares to Gowvt. of Kerala and Kochi Municipal
Corporation. The following approach adopted by the company to release deferred
income related to grant to Profit and Loss Account.

In the case of grant received from Government of India, Rs 200 Lakhs was paid to
State Mission Management Unit, Government of Kerala (SMMU) before incorporation
of the company for the preparation of Smart City Proposal (SCP). Expenses incurred
by SMMU were charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period ended 31st
March 2017 and the balance amount had been transferred by SMMU to the
Company.

Deferred grants are recognized in profit and loss on a systematic basis over the
periods necessary to match them with the direct cost attributable to the Smart City
projects excluding administrative & office expenses, project Management Expenses
and preliminary expense related to smart city proposals.

3.19 Grant Utilization
Z in Lakhs
Grants received (Cumulative) Smart City CITiIS Total
Mission
Government of India 41,650 41,650
Government of Kerala 38,375 38,375
Kochi Municipal Corporation 820.53 - F 1,197.53
Government of India - CITIIS Grant for 1359 1359
E-Health Solution
MoHUA, GOl - Street for People 50 50
Total - Grants received (Cumulative) 80,895.53 1,736 82,631.53
Utilization (Cumulative)
Projects 54,556.24 1,134.86 | 55,691.10
Admin and Other Expenses 5,389.45 186.64 5,576.09
Total - Utilization (Cumulative) 59,945.69 1,321.50 | 61,267.19

Out of the total grant received as Smart City Mission Grant by the company,
Rs 19,995 Lakhs has been reallocated for the issue of Shares to Govt. of Kerala and
Kochi Municipal Corporation. Out of the total grant of Rs 1,198 Lakhs received from
Kochi Municipal Corporation Rs 377 Lakhs has been allocated as SPV's contribution

for CITIIS project.
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3.20 Disclosure in respect of Ind AS19 (Employee benefits)
The company presently has only Eight full time employee appointed on a One-year
contract. No provident fund or gratuity is payable to this employee as per the relevant
law / rules.

3.21  Disclosure in respect of Ind AS 24 (Related Parties Disclosures)

3.21.1 Key Managerial Personnel.

Shanavas S CEO (1%t April to 4" May 2023)
Suhas S CEO (4™ May to 29" May 2023)
Shaiji V Nair CEO (29" May to 315t March 2024)
Anu J CS (15t April to 315t March 2024)
Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel
T in Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended 315t For the year ended 31%
March 2024 March 2023
Salaries and Allowance and other Benefits
Shri. Shanavas S, CEO 2.22 23.06
(1st April to 4'" May 2023) (1st April to 31st March
2023)
Shri Shaji V Nair CEO 17.53 0
(29th May to 31st March 2024)
CFO 0.00 5.00
CS 7.47 5.29
3.21.2 Sitting Fees paid to Independent Directors
Name For the year ended 31% For the year ended
March 2024 31t March 2023
Dr. M Ramachandran 2.25 2.75
Shri. P Joy Oommen 2.25 2.50

3.21.3 Government related Entities
Since Government of Kerala and Kochi Municipal corporation own Company’s equity

shares equally (50% each), the disclosure related to transaction with Government
controlled entities have been recorded in accordance with para 26 of Ind AS 24.




Zin Lakhs

Name of entity

Nature of Expenses

For the year

ended 315t March

For the year
ended 31t March

2024 2023
Kochi Metro Rail Credit for Expenses 17.88 17.38
Limited incurred for CSML
Kochi Metro Rail Amount collected on 4.10 8.85
Limited behalf of CSML
Kochi Municipal Work Deposit paid 1,281.00 890.50
Corporation
Information Work Deposit paid 450.00 1500.00
Kerala Mission
Greater Cochin Work Deposit paid 275.00 686.00
Development
Authority
Kerala Water Work Deposit paid - 11.50
Authority
Outstanding Balance as on Balance Sheet Date T in Lakhs
Name of entity 31-03-2024 31-03-2023

Kochi Metro Rail Limited (Services

111.47( Credit)

107.21 (Credit)

received)
Information Kerala Mission ( Work 382.00 (Debit) 110.36 (Debit)
Deposit)
Greater Cochin Development Authority 379.47 (Debit) 686.00 (Debit)

Kerala Water Authority

11.50 (Debit)

11.50 (Debit)

Deposit)

Kochi Municipal Corporation (Work

3,415.35(Debit)

3,861.98(Debit)

Deposit)

Ernakulam Dist. Administration (Work

1000.00(Debit)

1000.00(Debit)
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3.22 Disclosure in respect of Earnings per share Ind AS 33 (Earnings Per
Share)

Particulars 2023- 24 2022- 23
Net Profit /(Loss) for the year (in Rs.) (4,38,25,069.60) (5,58,32,000.00)
Weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year 20.00.00.000 20.00.00.000
- Basic T R

Basic Earnings Per Share (Face value
of Rs.10/-per share) (Rs.) (0.22) (0.28)

3.23 inrespect of Ind AS 12 (Accounting for Taxes on Income)

The Company has deferred tax asset of Rs.3292.72 lakhs as on 315t March 2024
because of accumulated losses. In the absence of virtual certainty and as a matter of
prudence, the deferred tax asset is not recognized the financial statement

3.24 Disclosure in respect of Ind AS 36 (Impairment of Assets)

Company has shifted its office from the leased premise at Revenue Tower to 4th
Floor, JLN Metro station Building at Kaloor. The old office was later occupied by Kochi
Metropolitan Transport Authority and CSML handed over assets at the old office to
Kochi Metropolitan Transport Authority on 28" October 2020. As the final decision
regarding the sale consideration is not yet decided by Local Self Government
Department and Transport Department of Government of Kerala Company has
considered Impairment losses @ 20% on the book value as at 31-03-2023 in relation
to the Assets at its old leased office at Revenue Tower as below.

T in Lakhs
Particulars 2023- 24 2022- 23
Impairment losses recognized in profit or loss for the - 2.47

period

Reversals of impairment losses recognized in profit or - -
loss for the period.

In the case of other assets, no indication exists for the impairment of assets and
hence no impairment of asset is recognized in the accounts for the financial year.




3.25 Intangible assets under development

Intangible assets under development aging schedule

Intangible Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
assets under |Less than | 1-2years 2-3 years More than
development | one year 3 years
Projects in 9.02 9.02
progress
Projects
temporarily
suspended

Intangible assets under development completion schedule

Intangible assets To be completed

under development Less than | 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
one year years

Projects in progress 9.02

Projects  temporarily

suspended

3.26  Disclosure in respect of Ind AS 116 (Leases)

During the financial year 2019-20 Company has entered in to a license agreement
with Kochi Metro limited to lease approximately 10,000 Square feet of Office space to
establish Command control center and SPV office and the license period is for 10
years. Company has paid Rs. 669.40 lakhs as upfront license fee for the full 10
years. As no future lease liability exist on this license agreement discounting as per
Ind As 116 has not required.

3.26.1 Additions to right of use assets

€ in Lakhs
Particulars As at March As at March
31,2024 31,2023
Right-of-use  assets, except for Nil Nil
investment property
Total
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3.26.2 Carrying value of right of use assets at the end of the reporting period

¥ in Lakhs
Particulars As at March As at March
31,2024 31,2023
Opening Balance 449.32 516.26
Additions during the period
Depreciation charge for the year 66.94 66.94
Closing Balance 382.38 449.32
3.26.3 Total Cash flow for the Lease
Zin Lakhs
Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
Cash outflow 0.00 0.00

3.27 Information in respect of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as at 315t
March 2024
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Amount due to micro, small and medium
enterprises as at 31st March 2024
Trade Payable 384.30 115.87
Retention Payable 905.46 763.52
3.28 Trade Payable ageing Schedule
Particulars | Outstanding for following periods from | Retention | Un Total
due date of payment Payable billed
Less 1-2 2-3 More dues
than years years than 3
one years
year
MSME 382.81 1.30 0.19 905.46 1,289.76
Others 584.67 0.88 18.64 108.43 654.57 1,367.19
Disputed - - - - - -
dues -
MSME
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3.29 Payment to Statutory Auditors
T in Lakhs
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Audit Fees 0.40 0.40
Tax Audit Fees 0.15 0.15
Certification Fees - 0.10

Reimbursements
- Travelling Expenses
- Goods and Service Tax

3.30 Capital commitments, Contingent liabilities and Contingent Asset

3.30.1 Contingent Liabilities
There exists a contingent liability arising from an ongoing arbitration between LC
Infra Quavac Enviro Consortium as on 315t March 2024.

3.30.2 Capital and other commitment

¥ in Lakhs

Capital and other Commitments As at 31-03-2024 As at 31-03-2023
Estimated amount contracts 58,708.84 65,077.83
entered by CSML including

consulting contracts (net of

Advances) remaining to be

executed not provided for

(including GST)

All the lease agreement related to office and staff accommodation was and company
do not have lease payment commitments as at 315 March 2024.

Zin Lakhs
Particulars As at 31-03-2024 As at 31-03-2023
Commitments for Minimum lease - -
payments

Within one year = -
Later than one year but not later - -
than five years
Later than five years - -

3.31 Financial Ratios

Particulars

As at 31-03-2024

As at 31-03-2023

Current Ratio (Current

Asset/Current Liability)

5.31

3.61

Debt -~ Equity Ratio
Shareholders’ Equity/
Total Liabilities)

(Total

0.32

0.59




Smart City projects are funded through Central and State Assistance. All the projects
of the company are mainly social projects or being executed on the assets owned by
Kochi Municipal Corporation or Other Government Departments and company does
not have revenue from these projects or assets. Tender fees collected, share of
admin expenses collected from consultants for tender preparation and auction
proceeds are the source of income of the company and profitability ratios and
turnover ratios are not relevant to the company.

3.32 Additional Disclosure

Previous year's figures have been rearranged and regrouped to make them
comparable with those of the current year.

In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For SIN D & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 00121725)

o
@
Shamim C Ibrahim Shaji V Nair IAS Umesh N S KIAS AnuJ
Partner Chief Executive Officer & Director ~ Director Company Secretary
Mem No.213630 DIN : 10280940 DIN : 10265700 Mem No. A56122

UDIN : 24212630BKASRZ4617

Place : Ernakulam Place : Ernakulam
Date : 28-12-2024 Date : 28-12-2024
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COMPANY SECRETARIES

DOOR NO: 1509(1), GEORGE & XAVIERS' SQUARE, ST. BENEDICT CROSS ROAD, ERNAKULAM NORTH. KOCHI - 682018
Phone +91 484 4055301 / 2395878 e E-mail:_cochin@mehta-mehta.com e Visit us : www.mehta-mehta.com

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2024
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members,
M/s. Cochin Smart Mission Limited
Regd Office: 4™ Floor,
JLN Stadium Metro Station
Kaloor, Ernakulam - 682017

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Cochin Smart Mission Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the company) with corporate identity number U75140KL20165GC040388.
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion
thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit
period covering the financial year 1% April 2023 to 31% March 2024, complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes
and compliance- mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31% of March 2024 according to the
provisions of:
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder
" (during the period under review not applicable to the companyy);

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings (during the year under review not applicable to the Companyy);

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):-
[ XY
" QS«
u‘f & Page 1 of 5
2 >

*

HEAD. OFFICE : 201-206, Shiv Smriti, 2nd Floor, 49/A, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Above Corporaticn Bank, Worli, Mumbai-400 018

Tel.: +91-22-6611 9696. ® E-mail. info@mehta-mehta.com. ® Visit us . www.mehata-mehta.com
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a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 (during the period under review not applicable to the
company);

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015(during the period under review not applicable to the company);

c} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018(during the period under review not applicable to the company);

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014(during the period under review not applicable to the company);

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008(during the period under review not applicable to the Company);

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client {during the
period under review not applicable to the Company);

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009
{during the period under review not applicable to the Company); and

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018
(during the period under review not applicable to the Companyy);

(vi) The Real Estate (Regulation And Development) Act, 2016
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:

The company was unable to adhere to the timelines provided by Section 96 of the Companies
Act, 2013 for conducting its Annual General Meeting for the financial year ended March 31,
2023.

As mandated under Section 173 {1) of the Companies Act, 2013, every company shall hold a
minimum number of four meetings of its Board of Directors every year in such a manner that
not more than one hundred and twenty days shall intervene between two consecutive meetings
of the Board.

However, we have observed a gap of more than 120 days between the 29" and 30" Meeting of
the Board of Directors.

Pursuant to Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, every public company having paid-up share
capital of Rs. 10 Crore or more shall have a whole-time Key Managerial Personnel, which
includes the whole time Chief Financial Officer.

However, the vacancy of Chief Financial Officer is yet to be filled by the Company.
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We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the compaosition of
the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act except for the points mentioned above.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

Maijority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the Company had no specific events / actions
having a major bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

For Mehta & Mehta,
Company Secretaries
(ICSl Unique Code P1

Arun Kannamangalam Kamalolbhavan
Partner

FCS No: 9609

CP No: 11657

PR No.: 3686/2023

Place: Ernakulam

Date: December 28, 2024

UDIN: FO09609F003518785

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as '"ANNEXURE A'
and forms an integral part of this report.
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Annexure A

To,

The Members, .

M/s. Cochin Smart Mission Limited
Regd Office: 4™ Floor,

JLN Stadium Metro Station

Kaloor, Ernakulam - 682017

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
respansibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that
the processes and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regutations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of corporate laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on
test basis.

As regard the books, papers, forms, reports and returns filed by the Company under the provisions
referred to in points vi of our Secretarial Audit Report in Form No. MR-3 the adherence and
compliance to the requirements of the said regulations is the responsibility of management. Our
examination was limited to checking the execution and timeliness of the filing of various forms,
reports, returns and documents that need to be filed by the Company with various authorities
under the said regulations. We have not verified the correctness and coverage of the contents of
such forms, reports, returns and documents.
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The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the

Company.

For Mehta & Mehta,

Company Secretaries pram—

{ICS1 Unique Code pwssmum'i;oﬁ\)g_j; SN
e
[s(cocHin)= ]

-3 A I 3
P . \\L 2 // //

Arun Kannamangalam Kamalolbhavan *
Partner

FCS No: 9609
CP No : 11657
PR No.: 3686/2023

Place: Ernakulam
Date: December 28, 2024
UDIN: FO09609F003518785
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OFFICE OF THE ACCOUNTANT GENERAL (AUDIT-I) KERALA,
THIRUVANANTHAPURAM

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6)(B) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
COCHIN SMART MISSION LIMITED, KOCHI FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

The preparation of financial statements of the Cochin Smart Mission Limited, Kochi for the year
ended 31 March 2024 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the
Companies Act 2013 (the Act) is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. The Statutory
Auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 139(5) of the Act are
responsible for expressing opinion on the Financial Statements under section 143 of the Act based on
independent audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 28" December 2024.

[, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a Supplementary Audit
of the Financial Statements of Cochin Smart Mission Limited, Kochi for the year ended 31 March 2024
under section 143(6)(a) of the Act. This Supplementary Audit has been carried out independently without
access to the working papers of the Statutory Auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries to the Statutory
Auditors and company personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records.

Based on my supplementary audit, I would like to highlight the following significant matter under
section 143(6)(b) of the Act which has come to my attention and which in my view is necessary for

enabling a better understanding of the financial statements and the related audit report.

A. COMMENTS ON PROFITABILITY

1. Statement of Profit and Loss
Income

Other Income (Note 3.10)
Interest from Bank - 2771.80 lakh

This includes 2729.54 lakh being interest earned from fixed deposits, which were created
using funds received from Government of India (Gol) and Government of Kerala (GoK) and
earmarked for operation and maintenance of projects/CITIIS . Repeated instructions issued by Gol

state that interest earned from funds released should mandatorily be remitted to the respective

! City Investments to Innovate, Integrate and Sustain (CITIIS)
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consolidated funds on pro-rata basis. Further vide Circular dated 21 October 2021, Government of
Kerala reiterated that interest accrued under centrally sponsored schemes (CSS) needs to be
deposited in the respective consolidated funds on pro rata basis.

Thus, accounting of interest earned on funds received from Gol and GoK as income violates
the clear directions issued by respective Governments and has resulted in overstatement of other

income and understatement of loss for the year by 2729.54 lakh.

2. Interest on Mobilisation advance paid - X76.32 lakh

The above head does not include ¥27.75 lakh being interest accrued on mobilisation
advance paid to the contractors for the period up to 31 March 2024. This has resulted

understatement of other income and overstatement of loss for the year to the extent of 327.75 lakh.

B. COMMENTS ON CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year - ¥26,024.57 lakh

As per para 45 of the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 on Statement of Cash Flows,
“an entity shall disclose the components of cash and cash equivalents and shall present a
reconciliation of the amounts in its statement of cash flows with the equivalent items reported in the
balance sheet”. As against disclosure of 26,024.57 lakh as cash and cash equivalents at the end of
the year in the cash flow statement, corresponding amount in the Balance sheet shows %11,769.22
lakh. The company has not complied with AS 7 regarding reconciliation of the amounts in

equivalent terms and the presentation of the cash flow statement is defective to that extent.

VT F [F9T5- HeTa@Tieies & faw 3iv 3761 v &
For and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India

)/ .
4&[;’ %\ -
GEEIRL ;
PREETHI ABRAHAM
UETAWIHR (AETYINET-1), HaT

Thiruvananthapuram ACCOUNTANT GENERAL (AUDIT-I),
Dated : 21 .04.2025 KERALA
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